ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
January 20, 2006
9:14 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Moses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeber g
Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative M ke Kelly
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 374

"An Act relating to establishment of a retirenent benefit
liability account in the Departnent of Revenue and redirecting
deposit of annual dividends of the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation to that account; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 375

"An Act relating to the retirenment benefit liability account and
appropriations from that account; relating to deposits of
certain incone earned on noney received as a result of State v.
Amerada Hess, et al., 1JU 77-847 Civ. (Superior Court, First
Judicial District); and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 374

SHORT TITLE: RETI REVENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ AHFC
SPONSOR(S): WAYS & MEANS

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- January 20, 2006



01/ 17/ 06
01/ 17/ 06
01/ 20/ 06

H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
H) VWM STA, FIN
H) W&M AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

NN N

BILL: HB 375
SHORT TITLE: RETI REVENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ PF
SPONSOR(S): WAYS & MEANS

01/ 17/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 06 (H) V&M STA, FIN
01/ 20/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

GARY BADER, Chief Investnment Oficer

Treasury Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding Al aska's
retirement system

TOM BOUTI N, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding Alaska's
retirenment system

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding Alaska's
retirenment system

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section

Division of Retirenent and Benefits

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding Alaska's
retirenment system

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH cal | ed the House Special Conmttee on Wys
and Means neeting to order at 9:14:31 AM Represent ati ves

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -2- January 20, 2006



Weyhrauch, G uenberg, Mses, and WIson were present at the call
to order. Representative Mke Kelly was also in attendance.

HB 374- RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ AHFC
HB 375- RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABILITY ACCT/ PF

9:14:55 AM

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 374, "An Act relating to establishnent of a

retirement benefit liability account in the Departnment of
Revenue and redirecting deposit of annual dividends of the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation to that account; and
providing for an effective date.” and HOUSE BILL NO 375, "An
Act relating to the retirement benefit liability account and

appropriations from that account; relating to deposits of
certain inconme earned on noney received as a result of State v.
Amerada Hess, et al., 1JU 77-847 Civ. (Superior Court, First
Judicial District); and providing for an effective date."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said both bills on the agenda today deal wth
retirement liability accounts, and HB 376 acconpanies these
bills, which is a sinple appropriation bill that has been
referred to the House Finance Conmittee. He noted that various
interest groups in the state, including the Al aska Munici pal
League (AM.) and the Al aska State Chanber of Commerce, continue
to demand a statewide fiscal plan. These groups have also
prioritized a desire to address the Public Enployee Retirenent
System (PERS) and Teachers Retirement System (TRS) unfunded
ltability. He said that the House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means has taken nuch testinony from the public, communities and
other interest groups on the topic, and the solution to this is
si npl e: cash. "All we have to do is appropriate all the noney
there is, and the problemis solved."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said that is not a realistic political solution

since there are other needs in the state. "Since we've dealt
with the future of the retirenment system through the passage of
SB 141, we still have an existing problem with the unfunded
liability," which last year was $5.7 billion. He said if the
growh of that is not arrested, it wll create a huge deficit
pr obl em If the problem is not addressed, the state wll have

to use noney from the constitutional budget reserve, enter into
additional kinds of indebtedness through bonding, use earning
reserves of the permanent fund, or take the noney out of the
permanent fund itself. He said the bonding conpanies and rating

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- January 20, 2006



agencies are going to denmand sonme action by the state to take
care of this problem

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said this is a long-term political issue. He
added, "What 1've tried to do is take the testinmony of the
public that we have had this past year, and take sone of the
political rhetoric that we've heard from various groups on how
to solve the problem and put it into a strategic long term
context." He said a recurring source of noney that could be
used "is the North Slope." He said other resource devel opnent
nmoney and interest on investnents provide a recurring source of
noney, "but essentially that is the only source of revenue that
we have of any significant size...to address the unfunded
liability."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated that today's bills wll set up special
accounts that can take nobney from other sources and use it to
pay into the unfunded liabilities of PERS and TRS. Rel ated is

the appropriation bill that the House Finance Committee wll
deal with, which will ultimately appropriate $438 mllion into
both systens, with the majority going into TRS for the benefit
of public education. He said that sone previous testinony has

indicated that there may be other sources of revenue for PERS.
He stated his desire to get the bills introduced today, and he
would |ike to get many questions from the committee so nenbers
understand "what's going on with the bills.” He stated that he
wants to know the position of the Alaska Retirenent Mnagenent
Board (ARMB), which has just hired a new actuary, Buck
Consul t ant s. He said he wants to know the size of the unfunded
l[iability and its inmpact to the state's finances.

9:24:16 AM

GARY BADER, Chi ef | nvest ment Oficer, Treasury Division,
Department of Revenue, said the Departnment of Revenue is staff
to the newy fornmed Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board (ARMB),
which consists of nine trustees and has nmet three tinmes. He
listed the acconplishnents of the board including working on a
report to the legislature that is due in a few days. He said
ARMB has not determined how it wll respond to the proposed
| egi sl ati on. He said a new actuary has been hired, but there
will not be actuarial findings until March. The board has
listed long-term recomendati ons, and one of those goals is "to
fully fund retirenment obligations to our public enployees with a

m nimal inmpact on services to the residents of Alaska." M.
Bader said that in pursuit of that goal , the likely
recommendations of ARMB w Il include sone conbination of the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- January 20, 2006



foll owi ng: extending the payoff period, requesting contributions
to the system and adopting a funding strategy that will set a
[imt on the rate of enployer contributions.

MR. BADER said today's bills have funding source issues that can
only be resolved by the legislature. "I am confident the board
would welconme the infusion of funds into the system if the
funding source issues can be resolved,"” he concl uded. Then in
response to questions, M. Bader said there is considerable
concern regarding the escalation of enployer contribution rates
that he believes will go up to 50 percent for TRS, so the ARMB
may have suggestions when they have enough information.

9:29: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what M. Bader neant by extending
t he payoff peri od.

9:29:41 AM

MR. BADER said the concept is simlar to a home nortgage and
extendi ng the payoff from 25 to 30 years would | ower the anount
of the annual contributions to the system

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that the bills before the
committee suggest paying the debt off now, which is the opposite
of M. Bader's position on extending the payoff. He asked if an
extension could be done legislatively or adm nistratively.

MR. BADER said that he believes ARMB's intention "is to submt

questions to Buck [Consulting]--there are accounting Iissues

involved in extending the liability period--to get their input

on the feasibility of extending that payoff period.” He said,

"The question [ARMB] wll probably put to Buck is, here are
these three tools, and then try and find an optimum conbi nation
of those tools: extending liability, annual contributions—
they're looking at annual contributions not because they think
it wouldn't be nice to have the full amount paid in advance, but

consider that so unlikely as to probably elimnate it from one
of the approaches, and then also a cap on enployer contribution
rates, because it's ny view that the comrittee felt that it's

just unrealistic to think that the rates can be allowed to
escalate up to the amounts projected in the last actuarial

val uation."

9:31:40 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -5- January 20, 2006



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said the |ast person that is going to be hired
on mdnight, June 30, 2006, is going to be a tier 3 enployee.
That person can retire after thirty years, so "we have to fund
the system to finance that enployee's retirement and health for
30 years, so why would it nake nore sense to do it to 30 years
as opposed to anything | ess?"

MR. BADER said that is a question the ARMB will ask the actuary.
9:32: 27 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH referred to Representative G uenberg' s question,
and asked M. Bader | f [an  extension] can be done
adm nistratively or legislatively.

MR. BADER said the Departnment of Admnistration could answer
that, but he believes it does not require |egislation.

9:33: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said extending the payoff wll cost nore
in the long run.

9:33:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he feels that the public is
looking to the legislature for sone | eadership. It is a
political problem as well as an accounting one. He said there
are 110 days left in the session. "How long will it take the
ARM board to get their proposal to us?"

MR. BADER said he does not have an answer because it depends on
"the speed with which the actuary conpletes their work." He
said the actuary wll first "attenpt to replicate the 2004
val uation of the fund that was done by Mercer in order to assure
t hensel ves, | guess, that their data is correct—+ don't really
understand the reason for that." He said SB 141 also requires a
second actuary, and the Departnent of Revenue is in the process
of hiring one who wll report directly to ARMB. "That's not to
say that Buck [Consulting] is not accessible to the ARM board

they are accessible, the comm ssioner of adm nistration has said
that they shall be." He said the focus of ARMB is getting this
required report to the |egislature. He said that at the next
board neeting they wll take action to put the questions of
changi ng the various assunptions to the actuary.

9: 35:32 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- January 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the length of tine and the terns
of a payoff can vary, but he asked M. Bader if the legislature
can begin the process.

9:36: 51 AM

MR. BADER said that in the report to the legislature there is
| anguage that says that the board knows there is a need for
additional funding into the system He said, "W don't have to
have the exact fornmula, it's $5.5 billion we know in arrears,
any amount would be a first step.” He added that he thinks ARVB
is pronoting an infusion of funds by the legislature and "the
sooner, the better."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the bills before the conmmttee

deal with funding and the source of funding, but "if we are
|l ooking at this as a three-legged stool, | am suggesting, M.
Chair, that this commttee mght consider putting conceptually
the other two legs in here too, realizing that they'll have to
be tweaked as we go through the system But at Ileast the

recommendation fromthis conmttee fromthe get-go would be that
this be part of a 3-pronged approach. And we put them in the
bill, and we try to get the problem at |east dealt with in the
heari ng process, and as we get nore information, they can fil
in the figures.™

9:38: 22 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said the committee needs nore testinony and
informati on on extending the payoff period and limting enployer
contributions, but the third approach of requesting additional
contributions into the system "is a political decision that we

have to make." He noted that the three bills before the
conmittee today, HB 374, HB 375 and HB 376, deal wth
[additional contributions], "and it is ny understanding that

[ ARVMB] doesn't have a position on any one of these bills."

MR. BADER said that was correct.

9:39: 23 AM

MR. BADER said the board's intent on a cap on the contribution
rate "would be to determne a cap, not in the sense of a hard
law," but as a tool "to try and hone in on the length of the

period of anortization, the anount of contributions to the
system that they in some way say, 'W have to constrain this

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- January 20, 2006



nmodel to sone l|level of contribution rate that is doable.'" He
said it would be sonething far | ess than 55 percent.

9:40: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if it would be nore feasible to use
a cap if the legislature paid a lunp sum of $500,000 to the
princi pal .

MR. BADER said that is correct, but the renaining debt would
have to be anortized over 25 years, so it may not have as |arge
of an inpact on the enployer contribution rate as the approach
suggested in the legislation before the commttee.

9:41: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the actuaries will be able to
give several scenarios like that for the legislature to
consider, with sonme actual facts.

MR. BADER said, "I believe it is the board's intent to ask them
for several scenarios."

9:41: 54 AM

TOM BQUTIN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Treasury Division, Departnent
of Revenue, said the departnent put in zero fiscal notes for HB
374 and HB 375 to reflect that the transaction cost would be
mnimal. He said he is not speaking to where in the budget the
nmoney would "instead go; that is a policy call.™ He said the
departnment woul d have "the noney for about one quarter before it
went out to enployers to be then comng back to the sponsor
pl ans. " He added that he spoke with Kevin Brooks about the
nmoney instead flowing directly to the sponsor plans to be
credited to the enployers in the same anounts, thereby avoiding
transaction costs and the loss of investnment returns that
happens by sending the noney out to the enployers and having the
same noney cone back.

9:43: 42 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if it is advisable to put the noney
directly into PERS instead of creating these accounts.

9:43: 56 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- January 20, 2006



MR. BOQUTIN said in the case of HB 374 the dividend would flow to

the account set up by the bill and then it would flow out to the
enpl oyers, and then the enployers would send the sane anount
back in the form of additional enployer contributions. He said

the noney, instead, could flow directly into the PERS and TRS
i nvestnents.

9:44:51 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked what the unfunded liability is today, and
what it nmeans in terns of the budget.

9:45:18 AM

MR. BOUTIN said those are the things the actuary is supposed to
provi de. He added that "the exam nations now of the financial
picture are driven by the enployer contribution rates. Credit
ratings of the state and—+o the best of ny know edge—ef the
muni cipalities are not in any way |jeopardized, weakened or
suffering because of the unfunded pension liabilities in PERS
and TRS. PERS and TRS are still in the top tier anong states

so far as funding and plan reliability, and are either not
nmentioned, or are not nentioned in a cautionary way, by the
credit rating agencies when they review the credit of the state
or Al aska municipalities.”

9:46: 44 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked the return on the investnment of the noney
in the PERS and TRS system

9:47: 01 AM

MR. BADER said PERS earned 8.95 percent and TRS earned 9.0
percent |ast year, and the previous year it was over 14 percent.
The three years prior to those were below the actuarial rate of
return that the system expects to receive. Over the past 13.5
years, the retirement funds have earned higher than the 8.25
percent anticipated by the actuary, he stated.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked what the growth of the unfunded liability
portion of the debt has been.

MR. BADER said he does not know.

9:48: 08 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -9- January 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the unfunded liability |ast year
was 5.7 billion. Wat is it now?

MR. BOUTIN said he has no idea, and the actuary will find that
out .

MR. BADER said there are many things that affect the actuari al
calculation like health, longevity, and salary increases.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked how nmany other states have
simlar problens.

MR. BQUTI N said probably all of them

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the federal governnent is
consi dering giving assistance.

MR. BQUTI N suggest ed asking the Division of Retirenent.
9:50: 55 AM
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked what report was com ng and when.
9:52: 22 AM

MR. BADER said he referred to an ARMB report that was required
by SB 141 and is due on January 24, 2006.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked to have the report presented to the
conmi ttee next Wednesday.

9:53: 27 AM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration
(DDA, said that the work with ARMB is collaborative with DOA
and Departnent of Revenue. He said the ARMB report was jointly
authored by the two departnents. He stated that a cap on the
contribution rate is not necessary in statute. He added that SB
141 established a floor and required the actuarially determ ned
normal rate for contribution to be net each year by enployers,
which he said prevents problenms seen in the late 1990s when
rates dropped and conpounded the narket-loss problens. The
floor is the normal rate, which is just over 13 percent.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if that is in effect now

MR. BROOKS sai d those are devel oped for FY 2007.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 10- January 20, 2006



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked what percentage of the PERS and TRS
entities are bel ow that.

9:57:31 AM
MR. BROOKS said he did not know.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there will be a huge junp in required
enpl oyer contributions after July 1.

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnment of Administration, said it
will be a very small nunber. It would be less than 12 out of
161 enpl oyers.

9:58: 47 AM

MR. BROOKS said there are Internal Revenue Service rules
restricting extension of the payoff period.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if the |egislature or admnistration would
extend t he payoff.

MR. BROOKS said it does not require statute.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked what is the wupper Ilimt on enployer
contri butions.

MR. BROOKS said there is not an upper limt, but anything in
excess of 50 percent is hard to sustain. "We're |ooking for a
bal ance between extending the payoff contributions and other
things, and arriving at a rate that 1is sustainable, that
enpl oyers can afford to pay."

10: 00: 32 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked the size and growmh rate of the unfunded
liability.

MR. BROOKS said the administration is looking at it. He said
when the Mirkowski admnistration cane into office it was $4.2
billion. A year later, in 2003, it had grown to $5 billion.
The nost recent nunber is $5.7 billion, he said. He said there
will be a report fromBuck in March. He added that the analysis
bei ng done is based on over 20 assunptions, from health costs to

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- January 20, 2006



earni ngs projections. Buck will try to replicate data from
Mercer, so the estimates will conpare.

10: 02: 23 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if the report will be held until there is
a second opi ni on.

10: 02: 40 AM

MR. BROOKS said the report wll not be held. He said the
appropriation made in FY 2006 to pay for the 5 percent increase
did go directly to the funds. He added that the state has the
ability to allocate it to enployers, and it is nore efficient
that way instead of how today's |egislation does it.

10: 03: 57 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked for, in witing, why it is nore efficient.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she has heard that when the enpl oyers
got noney this year sonme of them wused it to reduce the
per centage and others didn't.

MR. BROOKS said that however a cash infusion is inplenented, it
is inmportant that enployers can contribute at a rate they want.

10: 04: 56 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he has a legal analysis on pension
obligation bonds from Tam Cook, D rector, Legislative Legal and
Research Servi ces.

10: 05: 24 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he doesn't want to wait until March. The
l[iability isn't getting any snaller.

10: 06: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the other "two prongs of this
stool” can be done without legislative action, and he wants to
explore that with the adm nistration

10: 06: 56 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- January 20, 2006



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said the state finances the contribution to the
enpl oyee under the defined contribution plan, and he asked if
the state has to provide a simlar anmpunt of noney to those
enpl oyees under the defined benefit plan.

MR. BROOKS said the analysis from actuaries contenplates a
contribution rate that would be assessed on enployee payroll

regardless of the tier an enployee is in. "The differenti al
between that normal cost and the actuarially determ ned cost
would still be the anpbunt that would be going to retire the

unfunded liability."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH sai d that at sone point the state should be able
to determine what the rate of savings is by having the new tier.

MR. BROOKS said that woul d becone apparent over tine.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH questioned if the state really realizes the
savings by having a new tier because it has to give an identical
anount, or sone contribution, to the existing system "So it is
not saving noney. It's still spending the sane anobunt or nore."

MR. BROOKS said the normal cost of different tier enployees can
be determ ned, and those will be different. "And what we do
know is in a defined contribution plan, the anpunt for that
enployee in tier four is absolutely determ ned. There is no
unknown ampunt for future nedical costs.” He said it takes the
uncertainty out of the rate going forward. But the nornmal rate
can be determned for the different tiers, and the differentia
with the actuarially determined rate would be the anount that is
contributed toward the unfunded liability.

10: 09: 33 AM

[HB 374 and HB 375 were hel d over.]
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
10: 09.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 13- January 20, 2006



